TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of November 1, 2018


PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr. Anginoli 						Steve Honan, Attorney
Mr. Keegan 					
Mr. Vasti 
Mr. Lynch 
Mr. Strieter 
 
Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of November 1, 2018, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and roll call taken.

There are a couple of items on the agenda tonight.  We will start out with a new application the request of Vestco, LLC.

Request of Vestco, LLC - App. #18-12 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15A-I-6 – Less than required rear setback, required 50 feet, provided 35 feet; for an office for professional use located at 11 Holt Drive, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  20.04          Block:  11          Lot:  7            Zone:  LI-2

Is the applicant or a representative of the applicant here?  Can you just come up and identify yourself and tell us where you live.

	Gary Galanti
	7 Kelly Court
	Tomkins Cove, New York

Chairman Wright:  Could you just raise your hand – “Is the testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Galanti:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  So what we would like to do is a couple of steps.  But, the first step we really look at the application and make sure it is complete and that it’s got the right information so we can go ahead and schedule it for a Public Hearing.  But, if you could just give us a quick background on what you are looking to do.  What is the state of the property now, what you are looking to do and what is the relief you are looking for?

Mr. Galanti:  The building is right across from Shop Rite on Holt Drive.  If you drive out the driveways, there is a building right in front of you and we built onto it.  I’m sure if you go to Shop Rite you would see that we built onto it over the last two (2) years.  Now in the front on the left side there’s two (2) retail stores and we have like a chiropractor/doctor type – when you have to go and visit…pain management and that kind of stuff.  And he wants to take over the two (2) stores and put in an office in there.  So the setback in the back is 15 feet too short from what I understand.  Bill could probably explain it better than me.  We just want to be able to rent it.

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Sheehan, did you have some information you wanted to share with us on that.  Was there anything specifically you wanted to state to the Board?

Mr. Sheehan:  That building went to the Planning Board probably about two (2) years ago and they had warehouses or contractor storage use and retail in the front.  The reason they had retail in the front gave them a smaller setback requirement in the rear.  One of the reasons I came tonight was because in this case it is a professional use which requires a 50 foot setback verses a 25 foot setback as a retail does.  But, if you look at the site plan he is actually 65 feet off the rear.  What the confusion might be is the first 30 feet is what we call a “buffer zone”.  So the rear yard, the rear setback actually starts after that.  So if you look at the site plan you would say if he needs 50 feet, but he has 65…really the first 30 feet doesn’t count.  He owns it, but under our Code we don’t count that as far as the setback.  So 50 feet divided 35, but in reality the building is actually 65 feet off the property line.

Mr. Keegan:  Bill, a couple of years ago the Town Board rezoned that area or modified the Zoning Code….

Mr. Sheehan:  Yes, they created an LI2 Zone.

Mr. Keegan:  Okay, does that include professional use and all…

Mr. Sheehan:  Yes, that’s why he is in for an area variance and not a use variance.  

Mr. Keegan:  Okay, good that answered my question.

Mr. Sheehan:  That’s why it’s a setback variance and not a use variance.

Mr. Keegan:  Okay, great.  Thank you.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions before I take a motion to put it on the agenda?

Mr. Vasti:  Yes, I have a question for the applicant.  Is all the square footage necessary?  Could you make the envelope smaller so that you would reduce the size of the variance?

Mr. Sheehan:  The building is existing.  He is not reconstructing.

Mr. Vasti:  Oh, it’s an existing structure.

Mr. Sheehan:  He is not doing any construction.  He has an existing area in the front end of the building that is going to be retail sublet when rented.  He has someone coming in now, I guess, that is professional.  That is the issue.  

Mr. Vasti:  Okay, thank you.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, if there are no other questions I will take a motion to put it on the agenda for December 6, 2018.

***MOTION:  Mr. Vasti made a motion to put Application #18-12 on the December 6, 2018, agenda for a Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was granted.

Chairman Wright:  We will do a site visit on November 25, 2018.  So Mr. Galanti we will come by on November 25, 2018, sometime between 8:30 and 9:30 in the morning; maybe 10:00 depending on how many we got just to take a look at the property, but it doesn’t look like there is a whole lot of stuff.  There is nothing that we would need to be set-up or anything.  So if you see any people walking around the property on that morning or driving by…

Mr. Galanti:  Well I am usually there.  I don’t know what date the 25th is…

Ms. Kivlehan:  It’s a Sunday.

Mr. Galanti:  I live in Town so if you want me to be there I will be there.

Chairman Wright:  If for some reason we do, I don’t expect we need you there, we will get in touch with you beforehand.



Chairman Wright:  So the next item on the agenda is the request of Sana Fernandez.

Request of Sana Fernandez – App. #18-09 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article IV, Section 11 – Conversion of a manufactured home into a one-family detached home (not HUD approved)  Use not permitted at 134 North Liberty Drive, Stony Point, New York

Section:  15.04          Block:  3          Lot:  7.3          

We received request to postpone that; so we will go ahead and postpone that.


Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is a Public Hearing for the request of Stephen and Theresa Maraffino.
Request of Stephen and Theresa Maraffino - App. #18-11 

A variance from the requirements of:

1.  Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15-A h.1-4 – Less than required rear setback; required 15 feet (1998 ZBA), provided 2.7 feet; 
1. Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15-A h.1-5 – Less than required side setback; required 15 feet, provided 9.5 feet; and 
1. Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15-A h.1-5 – Less than required total side setback; required 40 feet, provided 29.7 feet for a residential addition located at 15 Ann Avenue, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  15.03          Block:  2          Lot:  78          Zone:  RR


Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or a representative for the applicant present?  Can you please come up and identify yourself.

	John Perkins – Architect

Mr. Perkins:  I am the agent for the applicants, Stephen and Theresa.

Chairman Wright:  Please raise your right hand and the “Testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.  

Chairman Wright:  So could you just give us some background as to what the work is now and what you are looking to do on the property and the rationale behind the request for these variances.

Mr. Perkins:  Sure.  I have some boards that I will bring up, but while I’m standing at the microphone I will give you a little background.  Back in 1971, Mr. Prestipino, who is the adjacent rear neighbor to Mr. and Mrs. Maraffino, purchased the property on Crickettown Road frontage and subdivided it for use for purposes of his daughter which is now 15 Ann Court.  So this piece of property has been in the ownership of the same family for roughly 47 years.  At this point they own 15 Ann Court and they intend to put an addition on the existing dwelling for purposes of living space…additional living space.  Their daughter will be moving in – Theresa and Stephen’s daughter will be moving in with their son-in-law and their family to occupy the existing house.  The addition is for purposes of Stephen and Theresa to live for their purposes only.  This is for the ability to maintain most of the living space at the ground level.  However, it will be 2 stories.  So immediately it will be a bedroom above, but down below there will be a bedroom at some point for future use.  At this point we are going add an addition to the right hand side of the house and it is an irregularly shaped lot and I will bring the boards up to give you a better visual on that which is more or less the function of most of these variances.  It is a very unique kind of a lot the way the geometry works.  I will grab the boards.  

(Mr. Perkins is now giving information from the boards he is presenting to the Board members.  At times, the tape is inaudible since Mr. Perkins is away from the microphone.)

So on the property survey you get a little background on the frontage here.  The house sits on an angle.  That is the frontage of the house.  The property line is travelling in relationship to the house.  The house as we extend to the right hand side becomes closer to the property line.  So as we extend outward to the right we are closer on the right side.  As we kind of travel back, we travel to the existing house.  Again we are coming closer to the property line to the rear because it is kind of caddy corner.  So we are more or less closer to the rear yard and the side yard which is functional and sufficient.  

The 2.7 shouldn’t (in audible) I will show you on the drawing themselves to give you a little background as to what the actual function of that.  That will be just an uncovered or a covered patio surface with no enclosure I should say.  The purposes of that is just to prevent any water or run-off into the stairs in the back.  The way the site is graded everything pitches towards the back of the house and Mr. Maraffino is certain about the water running towards the house.  So as the preventative measure we are trying to enclose that patio as additional living space during certain times of the year. 

So to give you a little bit on the architectural plans at the (inaudible) level.  The existing house is going to be initially just one bedroom.  What’s going to happen is we are going to have the one-bedroom suite on the second floor with the addition presently as being living space down below.  The pre-shaded is the new addition; that’s extending out 20 ‘4 and extending back 24’.

Chairman Wright:  Is that the shaded area on the top there?

Mr. Perkins:  That’s this area here.  The covered patio space is this area at the back.  So the actual addition corner is right there.  It’s at 8.5 and 2.7 is this corner here.  So this is actually uncovered the better portion back space.  That’s roughly 10’ patio space by almost 20 foot that is uncovered.  

The area below is going to be, again, functioning living space only.  (inaudible)  That will be more livable space for Mr. and Mrs. Maraffino.  

And at the second floor, this will actually provide the bedroom space and bathroom space for them.  Stairs to the second floor; one bedroom, one bathroom, closet and laundry area.  The existing house will contain the same occupancy (inaudible).  

The exterior view of the project.  This is the right hand side that was affected.  The front elevation proposed is the pre-shaded area as the petition.  So this is the true story edition to the right hand side.  This is the right hand view again pointing out that your setback; this is that front enclosed area…or covered patio at the back (inaudible).

Looking at the rear, the back indicates the bathroom and laundry room and the living space (inaudible).  The remaining existing house will be untouched.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Keegan:  Is the lot to the rear of this development…is it the lot behind it.  Is there a house there?  

Mr. Perkins:  Yes.  The house is Mrs. Maraffino’s father, Mr. Prestipino, who owns that house.  The house is further towards the front so it is nowhere near the rear setback at all.  The frontage of that house is on Crickettown Road.  

Chairman Wright:  You talked about the run-off, so if the run-off comes towards the back, would it go into the other property behind it?

Mr. Perkins:  This is higher above (inaudible) as indicated.  This kind of travels in this direction.  

Chairman Wright:  And it pushes the run-off then.

Mr. Perkins:  The run-off (inaudible).  This is more or less the (inaudible).  This is kind of a berm.  So what they intend to do is kind of make a swale around the front of the house for purposes of the run-off which (inaudible).  

Chairman Wright:  What would happen if Mr. Prestipino sold…they are not adjoined lots, right so they don’t have different ownership so somebody else can move into that unit that wouldn’t be a member of the family necessarily?

Mr. Perkins:  Correct.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Keegan:  What is that road in front of it?  I understand that on the other side…what’s the name of that road?  Is it Ann’s?

	(Board, unanimously said yes.)

Chairman Wright:  Any questions?  Is there anybody from the community that has any questions?  

Mr. Maraffino:  If I could just elaborate…

Chairman Wright:  If you could, just come up and identify yourself.

	Stephen Maraffino – lifetime homeowner
	15 Ann Avenue
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  Is the testimony you are about to give, is truthful?

Mr. Maraffino:  Yes.  I have lived in the town my entire life.  Just with reference to Mr. Keegan’s question or I think yours, Tom, if someone was to buy it…actually my oldest daughter lives with my father-in-law and they are in contract to buy the house.  So basically what we have is what we have is four (4) generations that’s lived there – my father-in-law, my mother-in-law (which just passed away), my oldest daughter lives with the intentions to buy that house, and we live with my youngest daughter and her family.  So basically we call it the “compound”.  I also have a son who lives in Alabama and a daughter in California so when they come home we will have some more space for them and my son whose husband’s is actually an Officer in the United States Army, so if he is deployed some place
then my son can come back and stay with us if he should leave the country.  So, basically it is all for family and we can take care of my father-in-law.  Hopefully that will answer that one particular question.

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Sheehan, any thoughts on this one?

Mr. Sheehan:  No.  I just want to say the Board did grant a variance back in I think 1993.  The rear setback was issued with a 15 foot variance for the rear.  Now it’s 2.7.  Just to give you that.  This happened before the Board and there wasn’t any issue.  

Chairman Wright:  Thank you.  If there is no other questions then and there is nobody from the audience I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Vasti made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  The last item on the agenda is the request of Joseph and Lenore Carzzarella.


Request of Joseph and Lenore Carzzarella – App. #18-10 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15-A-h.1-4– Less than required front yard/setback; required 35 feet, provided 16 feet for a deck located at 5 Burlingham Court, Stony Point, New York

Section:  20.09          Block:  3          Lot:  22          Zone:  R1

I will take a motion to open the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to open the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Is a representative for the owner/applicant here.  Can you just come up to the lectern and identify yourself and your address.

	Joseph Carzzarella
	5 Burlingham Court
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  The testimony you are about to give is truthful?

Mr. Carzzarella:  Yes.  

Chairman Wright:  So if you could just give us a description of what it is now and what you are looking to do and what the variances are?

Mr. Carzzarella:  Years ago I put this deck up and I was under the assumption that I did not need a permit because of the height of the deck and because it was a free standing property.  As I stated when I was here at the last hearing, that I want to get a permit, I want it permitted because there is liability issues in the event that the yard is open, somebody goes in the back, they fall, they get hurt.  Likewise, if I have company they get hurt.  I’m just not comfortable with it the way it is and as I said I would like to make it legitimate; if possible and that was the reason for the application.  I understand that because it was done years ago there are some Code up raises that need to be done to it as well which I’m willing to do if it can remain and that’s the reason why I am here.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Is there anybody from the public that has any questions, they would like to ask?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  So make sure that I understand this.  This is the first time seeing this.  You have a deck on the back …

Mr. Carzzarella:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  It is already constructed?

Mr. Carzzarella:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  And, you are looking for 16 feet…

Mr. Carzzarella:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  And, the deck has a C.O. otherwise or does he need a C.O. for it…

Mr. Carzzarella:  Yes, it does.

Mr. Sheehan:  He needs a permit and a C.O.

Chairman Wright:  So it will get him those things then.

Mr. Sheehan:  If the variance is granted, he will get a permit and upgrade the deck and then if it is done correctly he will get a C.O.

Chairman Wright:  So there will be some remediation work, it sounds like, on the deck or some remediation work.

Mr. Sheehan:  I believe so.  

Mr. Carzzarella:  I am willing to do so, yes.

Mr. Keegan:  Excuse me; Bill is this in the back or this part of the front yard?

Mr. Sheehan:  It is in the back of the house, but because the fronts on Filors, he is on a corner lot so it is considered a front also.

Mr. Keegan:  It’s a front yard…

Mr. Sheehan:  Well it’s in the rear of the house, but it’s considered also a front because he is on a corner lot.

Mr. Keegan:  Okay.

Chairman Wright:  No other questions then; no questions from the public…then I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Vasti made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  With that the only other remaining business is the minutes of October 18, 2018.

***MOTION:  Mr. Vasti made a motion to accept the minutes of October 18, 2018; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Is there any other business the Board wants to discuss?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to adjourn.

***MOTION:  Mr. Vasti made a motion to adjourn the meeting of November 1, 2018; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in Favor; the motion was carried.

					Respectfully submitted,

					Kathleen Kivlehan
					Secretary
					Zoning Board of Appeals
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